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Cell Aquaculiture Ltd
ABN 86 091 687 740

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as the Group) consisting of Cell Aquaculture
Limited and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during the financial year ended 30 June 2010,

Directors
The names of the Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:

Perryman James Leach

Peter Gerard Burns

Suresh Emmanuel Abishegam
Peter Philip Bodycoat

Perryman J Leach M.LE. Aust. (age 69)
Chairman non-independent, Executive Director
Perry Leach, the creator of the Eco-Cell ™ Recirculating Seafood Production System, is a Civil Engineer, project manager
and builder. He has extensive experience in the intensive farming of poultry through the food chain to abattoirs, small goods
processing, chiller and freezer works and pollution control. Mr Leach has an ongoing role in species development and the
further advancement of Cell’s unique technologies.

Mt Leach has not held directorships in any listed companies during the past three financial years.

Mr Peter Gerard Burns B.Bus A IMM. AMAM.I (age 34)
Executive Director

Mr Burns has been involved with Cell Aquaculture Ltd for the past 9 years and has played a key role in the international
development of the Company. He is actively involved in the day-to-day rumning of the Company’s operations with a
particular emphasis on the development of Cell’s international markets and product branding. Mr Burns holds a Bachelor of
Business degree with a double major in management and marketing and possesses over 15 years experience in these
respective fields.

Mr Burns has not held directorships in any listed companies during the past three financial years.

Capt Suresh E Abishegam (age 49)
Independent, Non-Execufive Director

Capt Abishegam is a Malaysian based businessman with public Company expericnce. He currently owns and operates
companies in the Shipping and Information Technology industries. Capt Abishegam has been associated with Cell for the
past four years, making the infroduction and providing the catalyst to complete the Joint Venture deal with the Malaysian
Government. He is also a Director of the Malaysian subsidiary company, Cell-Aqua Malaysia Sdn Bhd and will play an
instrumental role in driving the fitture expansion of this venture.

Capt Abishegam has not held directorships in any listed companies during the past three financial years.

Mr Peter Philip Bodycoat (age 44)
Finance Director

Mr Bodycoat oversees all financial functions of Cell Aquaculture Ltd, Mr Bodycoat has owned and managed his own South
Perth based accounting and financial advisory practice, Acute Management Services, for over 15 years. In that time he has
advigsed clients in many industries including mining, transport, manufacturing and civil contracting. He is a fellow of the
National Tax & Accountants Association and a registered tax agent. Mr Bodycoat holds a Bachelor of Business degree and
is also a Director of numerous private companies.

Mr Bodycoat has not held directorship in any listed companies during the past three financial years.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is Mr lan E Gregory. He has a Bachelor of Business from Curtin University and is a fellow of
Chartered Secretaries Australia. He is also a fellow of CPA Australia and a member of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors. Mr Gregory was appointed in 2005 and has over 25 years experience in the provision of company secretarial and
business administration services in a variety of industries, including exploration, mining, mineral processing, oil and gas,
banking and insurance.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company during the financial year were: Development, Commercialisation & Marketing
Technology relating to aquaculture farming,

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year.
Dividends Paid ov Recommended

No dividends were paid during the year and no recommendation is made as to dividends.
Operating and Financial Review

The consolidated operating result for the year ended 30 June 2010 is:

Financial Year Financial Year
2010 2009
b 3
Revenue from continuing operations 538,717 385,003
Net Loss for the year (1,022,654) (1,992,927)

Review of Operations

During the financial year ending 30™ June 2010, the Company achieved a 40% increase in revenue, whilst reducing the loss
attributable to members by 50%.

The significant reduction in the loss of the Company has been achieved through tight cost control and a rationalisation of
company operations. The Company maintaing a healthy cash position and debt free status, seeing it well poised for the 2011
financial year and a move towards the achievement of profitability.

During the year, the Company continued to actively progress the development of its unique vertically integrated ‘Hatch to
Dispatch’ business model.

FABRICATION

\ DISPATCH
GROW-OUT - PROCESSING
HATCHERY '—.b PRODUCTION - VALUE ADDING
- BRANDING
\ / - MARKETING
- DISTRIBUTION

RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT

Pagec 4



Cell Aquaculture Ltd
ABN 86 091 687 740

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To follow is a review of operations for the financial year ending 30" Fune 2010:

Hatchery and R & D
Hatchery progress throughout the year has been outstanding from the commercial/research and development operations,
located at James Cook University, Townsville, Queensland.

The James Cook University based operations continue to achieve a consistent reliable supply of high quality juvenile fish,
whilst continuning an advanced program to optimise hatchery technology and operating methods. This program is now in its
fifth year of operation, with Commercial and Research and Development objectives continuously evaluated. Today, this
facility stands alone as being the leading joint Commercial/R & D Barramundi venture in Australia.

Specific details of operational protocols developed through this program are proprietary and commerciaily sensitive,
however the success of this facility is characterised by use of:

Technical infrastructure that optimises water and environment conditions, whilst minimising the operating footprint;
Sophisticated operational protocols incorporating bio-security and fish health management;

Sophisticated nutritional management protocols;

Quality Assurance Selection Protocols (Proprietary methods developed to identify ‘genetic tracers’ and isolate fast
growing fish).

One of the key goals has been to develop highly efficient hatchery operations, which can effectively be transposed to another
production location, whilst still optimising biological predictability and commercial viability.

The now highly developed Cell hatchery concept offers the distinct advantages of:

Direct control over timing of supply,;

Reduced operating costs;

Increased bio-security by removing ‘foreign’ risks;

Ability for species-specific hatcheries to be tied to each production facility that they serve.

* o & 0

As a result of significant research and development over the last five years, output from the same hatchery footprint has
increased by over 500%. Given the significant success of this program, R & D in this area still continues, with the ultimate
goal to perfect this part of the agquaculture supply chain and be a world leader in hatchery supply.

This goal is being met for Barramundi and other species are now under investigation. Current R & D is focused on new
species development, whilst more advanced work is underway for Barramundi in the areas of selective breeding and
fingerling selection protocols, to farther improve the quality of seed stock for commercial operations. This activity directly
enhances productivity and profitability of the production ventures.

Fabrication and R & D

The Company continues o operate fabrication facilities, enabling the manufacture of key proprietary components. Whilst
awaiting a number of projects to progress from MOU stage to Contract stage, the Company has been manufacturing and
stockpiling various key components, to enable a shorter lead-time to production once the projects are fully committed. The
Company has also maintained a strong emphasis on R & D of new components and production techniques throughout the
year.

Grow-Out Production

During the year, the Company has progressed a number of MOU’s to develop grow-out production operations. The
advancement of these projects has been hindered primarily by the lengthy lead-times and cumbersome processes of gaining
all relevant approvals in the various regions. This has been a source of great frustration and has stifled the Company’s
ability to move forward at its desired pace.

As production commencement delays continued as a result of lengthy lead-times, the Board made the decision to take a pro-
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active approach and aim to source a suitable ‘low-cost’ production location, with all relevant approvals in place, to enable
the establishment of a 100% Company owned, conunercial scale grow-out production operation. This would enable the
Company to complete its vertically integrated ‘Hatch to Dispatch’ business model on a true commercial scale and propel the
Company towards profitability.

Subsequent to the financial year ending 30® June 2010, the Company formally secured an outstanding production site, with
all relevant approvals in place, located in Phuket, Thailand. The production site has a superior quality water source as well
as all necessary infrastructure and services in place, with capacity to develop production in excess of 500 tonnes of premium
finfish per annum.

The site is located adjacent to an existing Abalone farm, which has a newly constructed but unused production shed and
tanks available. The long term leasing arrangement covers the leasing of the existing shed and tanks, as well as additional
adjoining vacant land. The existing shed and tanks will be retro-fitted entirely with ‘Cell’ filtration components,
significantly increasing the yield of the existing operation and also enabling accelerated commencement of production,

The securing of this outstanding production opportunity, in a ‘low-cost’ operating environment, represents a key step
forward for the Company. Having approvals in place and the ability to retro-fit an existing facility, accelerates production
targets by up to 12 months. The Operations team are working to an aggressive timetable and first fingerlings (baby fish) will
be shipped to this new production venture in early October 2010.

Once the existing facility retro-fit is complete, construction of a new purpose-built ‘Cell” production facility will commence
immediately on the adjacent vacant land.

This production venture will be a 100% Cell Aquaculture Limited owned project, enabling the Company to maintain
complete control and advance at its desired pace.

The Company also continues to actively progress its various MOU’s, with a view to converting them into profitable
production ventures in the near future.

Dispatch — Processing, Value-adding, Marketing, Branding and Distribution
Subsequent to the 2010 financial year, the Company recently established a wholly owned subsidiary ‘Cell Aqua Foods Pty
Lid’ - a fully operational, food processing, value-adding, packaging and marketing division.

The Company acquired the assets, customer base and product range from an existing food processing business and
established a new facility located in Osbome Park, Western Australia. The acquisition of an existing business and
distribution network, including numerous supermarkets, restaurants and catering customers, offers instant cash flow from the
operations, whilst providing a solid platform for the Company to further develop its product range and distribution network.

Cell Aqua Foods Pty Ltd has secured the services of a local award winning chef with over 15 years experience in food
processing and new product development.

The first quarter of the 2011 financial year has been spent on rationalising and streamlining the Cell Aqua Foods business
and will be followed by an aggressive growth strategy to expand the product range and distribution network — creating
further markets for the ‘Grow-out Production’ opportunities outlined above.

Revenues from Cell Aqua Foods Pty Ltd have not been realised in the 2010 financial year.

Via Cell Aqua Foods, the Company has now developed a unique range of Premium fresh, smoked and value added
Barramundi products — which are now being actively marketed under the Company’s Eco-Star™ brand.

The Company recently showcased its product range at the Melbourne Fine Food exhibition, receiving tremendous feedback.
A number of key supply contracts are in the latter stages of negotiation and further updates will be provided as details are
finalised.
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Summary

Due to the extensive lead-times to obtain relevant approvals in various target production regions, progress during the 2010
financial year has been slower than expected, however the Company is now well ‘on-track’ with a pro-active strategy, the
right ‘proven’ business model and a highly motivated, committed and dedicated team.

The Company’s ability to now establish low-cost production operations and then process, value add, brand and distribute the
produce into premium markets, offers a very compelling business case and sees the Company on a positive path to
profitability.

Having secured invesiment from a key comerstone investor during the year, the Company maintains a healthy cash position,
debt free status, and is well poised for the 2011 financial year.

Environmental Issues

The Company’s operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulations under a law of the Commonwealth
or of a State or Territory. The Group has not yet fully reviewed the reporting requirements under the Energy Efficient
Opportunities Act 2006 or the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act 2007, but believes it has adequate systems in
place to ensure compliance with these Acts having regard to the scale and nature of current operations.

Meetings of Directors

The numbers of meetings of the Company’s Board of Directors and of each Board Committee held during the year ended 30
June 2010, and the numbers of meetings attended by each Director were:

Directors Meetings
A B
PJ Leach 6 6
S E Abishegam 6 6
P G Burns 6 6
P Bodycoat 1 1
Notes

A - Number of meetings attended.
B - Number of meetings held during the time the Director held office during the year.

Being a small executive Board, the Directors are in contact virtually on a daily basis, minimising the requirement for
numerous formal Board meetings throughout the year,

Share Options

Shares under Option
Unissued ordinary shares of Cell Aquaculture Limited under option at the date of this report are as follows:

Date options granted Expiry date Exercise price of options Number under option
29 November 2007 29 November 2010 $0.20 5,500,000
23 January 2008 18 January 2011 $0.20 1,550,000
28 February 2008 31 January 2011 $0.20 1,116,667
1 April 2008 1 April 2011 $0.20 3,050,000
11,216,667

No option holder has any right under the options to participate in any other share issue of the Company or any other entity.
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Directors’ Share and Option holdings
As at the date of this report the interests of the Directors in the shares and options of the Company were:

Director Ordinary Shares Options over
Ordinary Shares

P J Leach 16,007,501 -

P G Burns 1,250,395 1,500,000

S E Abishegam 1,293,816 2,500,000

P Bodycoat 1,640,540 -

Note that SE Abishegam owns 10% of the issued capital of Cell Aquaculture Malaysia Sdn Bhd, a subsidiary of Cell
Aquaculture Ltd.

Remuneration Report

The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:

A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
B Details of remuneration

C Services agreements

D Share-based compensation

The information provided in this remuneration report has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Corporations
Aet 2001, The executives of the Company during the financial year were Directors, Company Secretary and General
Manager.

(A) Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

The objective of the Company’s remuneration framework is to ensure reward for performance is competitive and appropriate
for the results delivered and set to attract the most qualified and experienced candidates.

Remuneration levels are competitively set to attract the most qualified and experienced Directors and senior executive
officers, in the context of prevailing market conditions.

The Company embodies the following principles in its remuneration framework:

s the Board seeks independent advice if required on remuneration policies and practices including recommendations on
remuneration packages and other terms of employment for executives; and

e in determining remuneration, advice is sought from external consultants on current market practices for similar roles
and the level of responsibility, performance and potential of the executive and performance of the Group.

The Directors are responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the Directors and the executive
team. The Board assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments of such officers on a pericdic basis by
reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from
the retention of a high quality Board and executive team.

The Australian resident Directors and executives receive a superannuation guarantee contribution required by the government,
which is currently 9%, and do not receive any other retirement benefits. All remuneration paid to Directors and executives is
valued at the cost to the Company and expensed. Options are valued using the Binomial methodology. The Board policy is to
remuneraie non-Executive Directors at market rates for comparable companies for time, commitment and responsibilities. The
Board determines payments to the non-Executive Directors and reviews their remuneration annually, based on market practice,
duties and accountability. Independent external advice is sought when required. The maximum aggregate amount of fees that
can be paid to non-Executive Directors is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (currently
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$200,000). Fees for non-Executive Directors are not linked to the performance of the economic entity.

Executives

All executives, with the exception of the Executive Chairman, receive a base salary {which is based on factors such as length of
service and experience) and superanmuation. The Board reviews executive packages annually by reference to the economic
entity’s performance, executive performance and comparable information from industry sectors and other listed companies in
similar industries. The Board may exercise discretion in relation to approving incentives, bonuses and options. The policy is
designed to atiract the highest calibre of executives and reward them for performance that results in long-term growth in
shareholder wealth.

Service agreements are in place for the Executive Director which provides for a fixed base fee per annum, External
remuneration information provides benchmark information to ensure the base pay is set to reflect the market for a
comparable role. Base fees are reviewed annually to ensure the level is competitive with the market. There is no guaranteed
base fee increases included in the Executive Director contract.

The Executive Chairman receives a fixed fee for his services as a Director, and is remunerated on an hourly basis for
services provided in excess of a base number of hours.

The Company does not offer any variable remuneration incentive plans or borus schemes to the Executive Director or the
Executive Chairman or any retirement benefits, as such there is no performance related links to the existing remuneration
policies.

The following table shows the gross revenue and losses and the share price of the Group at the end of the respective financial
years.

30 June 2006 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2009 30 June 2010
Revenue 983,559 1,103,234 1,567,104 385,003 538,717
Net loss (348,829) (4,710,575) (4,050,190) (1,992,927) (1,022,654}
Share price 22 cents 18.5 cents 12.5 cents 8.3 cents 14.5 cents

Noun-Executive Directors

Fees and payments to the Non-Executive Directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of the
Directors. Non-Executive Directors’ fees and payments are reviewed annually by the Board.

The current base remuneration for Non-Executive Directors was last reviewed in August 2009.

The Company’s Non-Executive Director’s remuneration package contains the following key elements:

. primary benefits — Director’s fees paid monthly; and
. equity — share options.

In addition, Non-Executive Directors are remunerated on an hourly basis for services provided in excess of their roles as
Non-Executive Directors.

(B) Details of remuneration
The Key Management Personnel of the Group are as follows:

(i) Directors

Perryman James Leach Chairman (Executive)
Suresh Abishegam Director (Non Executive)
Peter Gerard Burns Director (Executive)
Peter Bodycoat Director (Executive)
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(i) Other Key Management Personnel
Christopher Bolger General Manager (from 25 May 2010 to 30 June 2010)

In addition, Ian Gregory has been included as a specified executive as required to be disclosed under the Corporations Act
2001.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and Key Management Personnel and other executives of the Group are set out
below:

Year ended Short-Term Post employment Share-Based Total Remuneration
30 June 2010 Payments consisting of
options
Yo
Salary &  Comsulting Termination Super  Options Shares
Fees payments annuation

Directors

PJ Leach 39,993 - - - - - 39,993 -

PG Bums 214,654 - - 17,550 4,036 - 236,240 1.7

SE Abishegam 39,937 - - - 13,076 - 53,013 24.6

P Bodycoat 10,000 - - - - - 10,000 -

Other Key Management Personnel

IE Gregory - - - - - 14,000 14,000 -
CM Bolger 12,030 - - 1,083 - - 13,113 -
316,614 - - 18,633 17,112 14,000 366,339 4.7
Year ended Short-Term Post employment Share-Based Total Remuneration
30 June 2009 Payments consisting of
options
%o
Salary &  Consulting  Termination Super- Options Shares
Fees payments annuation
Directors
PJ Leach - 183,126 - - - - 183,126 -
PG Burns 191,231 - - 16,131 30,360 - 237,722 12.7
SE Abishegam 39,158 - - - 28,783 - 67,941 42 .4
Other
IE Gregory - - - - - - - -
230,389 183,126 - 16,131 59,143 - 488,789 12.1

The above persons are among the five highest paid as required to be disclosed in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001.
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(¥

Service agreements

On appointment, the Non-Executive Directors enter into a service agreement with the Company in the form of a letter of
appointment. The letter outlines the Board policies and terms, including remuneration relevant to the office of Director.

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Executive Director and Executive Chairman are formalised in letter
agreements. The major provisions relating to remuneration are set out below.

Peter G Burns, Executive Director

Term of agreement — no specified term.
Base fee of $195,000 pa (Salary - $155,000 pa, Directors Fees - $40,000 pa) as at 30 June 2010, to be reviewed

" annually.

Payment of long service leave equal to 3 months of base fee upon completion of 7 years of continuous service.
Statutory superannuation is payable under the agreement.

No performance based benefits payable under the agreement.

Post-employment benefits include accrued long service leave, which is due and payable after every seven
consecutive years of service. No other termination benefits are payable. 1 month notice period is required for
termination of the contract.

Perryman Leach, Executive Chairman

Term of agreement — no specified term.

Base fee of $40,000 pa as at 30 June 2010 in relation to his Directorship, to be reviewed annually. In addition an
hourly rate of $100 is payable in respect of his executive duties.

Long service leave does not accrue.

Statutory superannuation is not payable under the agreement.

No post employment or termination benefits are payable.

There is no notice period required for termination of the contact,

Peter Bodycoat, Finance Director

* & & 9

Term of agreement — no specified term.

Base fee of $180,000 pa (Fees for taxation, finance and business advice, compliance services, bookkeeping, all
other statutory reporting , corporate headquarters registered office, and Rent - $140,000 pa, Directors Fecs -
$40,000 pa) as at 30 June 2010, to be reviewed annually.

Long service leave does not accrue,

Statutory superannuation is not payable under the agreement.

No post employment or termination benefits are payable.

There is no notice period required for termination of the contact.

Christopher Bolger, General Manager

Term of agreement — no specified term.

Base fee of $146,000 pa (Salary - $140,000 pa, Motor Vehicle Allowance - $6,000 pa) as at 30 June 2010, to be
reviewed annually.

Statutory superannuation is payable under the agreement.

All statutory leave provisions apply.

Performance bonus of 250,000 share options in Cell Aquaculture Ltd, exercisable at 20 cents per share will be
allocated, subject to the market capitalisation of the Company at the end of the first 6 mounths of employment being
a minimum of 25% greater than at the beginning of the employment period, 25 May 2010,

No other termination benefits are payable.
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D) Share-based compensation

Cptions over shares in the Company are granted under the Cell Aquaculture Employee Share Option Plan {‘ESCP’) which
was approved by shareholders on 31 October 2007. The Plan is used to reward Directors and employees for their
performance and to align their remuneration with the creation of shareholder wealth. There are no performance
requirements to be met before exercise can take place. The Plan is designed to provide long-term incentives to deliver long-
term shareholder returns. Participation in the Plan is at the discretion of the Board and no individual has a contractual right
to participate in the plan or {o receive any guaranteed benefits. The issue of options 1s not linked to performance conditions
because by setting the option price at a level above the current share price at the time the options are granted, provides
incentive for management to improve the Company’s performance.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2010, Christopher Bolger, at the time of recruitment, was given an opportunity to
take part in Performance Bonus Share Option Plan. Performance bonus of 250,000 share options in Cell Aquaculture Ltd,
exercisable at 20 cents per share will be allocated, subject to the market capitalisation of the Company at the end of the first
6 months of employment being a minimum of 25% greater than at the beginning of the employment period, 25 May 2010.
The Company has not issued any performance bonus options as at 30 June 2010.

Options granted under the ESOP carry no dividend or voting rights.

Details of options over ordinary shares in the Company provided as remuneration to each Director is set out below. When
exercisable, each option is convertible into one ordinary share of Cell Aguaculture Ltd.

No shares have been issued to Directors as a result of the exercise of any Plan options in the current financial year (2009:
Nil).

This is the end of the Andited Remuneration Report.

Indemnification of Officers and Auditors

During the financial year, the Company paid a premium in respect of a contract of insurance insuring the Directors and
officers of the Company against certain liabilities specified in the contract, The contract prohibits disclosure of the nature of
the liabilities insured and the amount of the premium.

The Company has not otherwise, during or since the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer or auditor
of the Company against a liability incurred as such an officer or auditor.

Non-Audit Services

The Directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services, during the year, by the auditor or a related practice of the
auditor is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001.

The Directors are also satisfied that the provision of non-audit services by the auditor if any, as set out in note 19 to the
financial statements, did not compromise the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the
following reasons;

s  All non-audit services have been reviewed by the audit committee to ensure they do not impact the impartiality
and objectivity of the auditor, and

¢ None of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor’s independence as set out in APES 110
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is included
in this Financial Report.
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Details of amounts paid or payable to the auditor, BDO Audit (WA} Pty Ltd, for audit and non-audit services provided
during the year are set out in note 19 to the financial statements, No fees were paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit
services.

Proceedings on Behalf of the Company

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to
which the Company is party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or part of those
proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

G&ﬁ

PETER G BURNS
Director

Dated at Perth this 30th day of September, 2010.
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Tel: +8 6382 4600 38 Station Stieet

Fax: +& 4382 4601 Subiaco, WA 6008
www. bdo.com.au PO Box 700 West Perth WA 6872

Australia

30 September 2010

The Directors

Cell Aquaculture Limited
Unit 53, 15 Labouchere Road
South Perth 6151

Dear Sirs,
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY PETER TOLL TO THE DIRECTORS OF CELL AQUACULTURE

LIMITED

As lead auditor of Cell Aquaculture Limited for the year ended 30 June 2010, 1 declare that, to the
best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:

« the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit;
and

+ any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Cell Aquaculture Limited and the entities it controlled during the
period.

Peter Toll
Director

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd
Perth, Western Australia

BOO Audit (WA PUy Lkd ABN 79 112 284 767 iz a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of 300 {Australia) Led ABH 17 050
110 275, an Austratian company limized by guarantee. BDO Audit {¥4; Pty Ltd and BDO {Australia} Ltd are members of BOO Internationat Lid, a UX company timited
by guarantee, and {orm part of the intemational BOC network of fridependent member finms, Liability timited by a scheme approved under Frofesslonat Standards
Legislation tather than for the acts or omizsions of finapcial services licenseas) in each State ar Territory other than Tasmania.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Cell Aquaculture Ltd

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Cell Aquaculture Ltd, which comprises
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2010, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on
that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the
directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it
controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes
establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 1 (a), the directors also state, in
accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the
financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinicen on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial report,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinions.

BOO Audit (WAY Pry Ltd ABM 75 112 284 787 35 3 member of a2 nationa] assoctation of independent entities which are all members of 800 {Australiz) Ltd ABH 77 050
110 275, an Australian company limited by puarantee. BDO Audit (WA} Pty Ltd and 800 {australia) Ltd are members of 800 Interaational Lid, a UK company limited
by guarantee, and form part of the internatianal BDO network of independent member firms, Liability limited by a scheme approved under Prefessional Standards
Legislation {other than far the acts or omissions of financial services licensees) in each State or Territory other than Tasmania.
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Independence

In conducting cur audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001. We confirm that the independence declaration required by the
Corporations Act 2001 would be in the same terms if it had been given to the directors at the
time that this auditor’s report was made.

Basis for Qualified Auditor’s Opinion

Attention is drawn to the recoverability of the consolidated entity’s trade receivable owing
from TRG Cell as disclosed in Note 10. Negotiations for repayment are currently in progress
however as at the date of our report these have not been finalised and accordingly, we were
unable to perform sufficient audit procedures in relation to the recoverability of this
receivable. Due to this limitation of scope, we have not been able to determine if an
impairment provision against this trade receivable is necessary or the amount of the effect, if
any, that an impairment provision would have on the consolidated statement of financial
position and statement of comprehensive income.

Qualified Auditor’s Cpinion

In our opinion:

{a} In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustment, if any, as might have been
determined to be necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves on the matter referred
to in the preceding paragraph; the financial report of Cell Aquaculture Limited is in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30
June 2010 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

{b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Note 1 (a).

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors’ report for the year
ended 30 June 2010. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations
Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on
our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.



|BDO

Auditor’s Opinion

In our cpinion, the Remuneration Report of Cell Aquaculture Ltd for the year ended 30 June
2010, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001,

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd
(gl

de =

Peter Toll

Director

Signed in Perth, Western Australia
Dated this 30" day of September 2010



Cell Aquaculture Ltd
ABN 86 091 687 740

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

The Directors of the Company declare that:

The financial statements, comprising the statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position,
Statement of Cash Flow, statements of changes in equity, acCompanying notes, are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 and:

(a) comply with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

{b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2010 and of the performance for the year
ended on that date of the consolidated entity.

In the Director’s opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as
and when they become due and payable,

Note 1(a) confirms that the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The remuneration disclosures included on pages 8 to 12 of the Director’s Report {as part of the Remuneration
Report) for the year ended 30 June 2010, comply with Section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

The Directors have been given the declarations as required by Section 295A by Mr P G Burns, whom performs the
Chief Executive functions, and Mr P Bodycoat, who performs the Chief Financial Officer functions, in the
Company.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf of the
Directors by:

€E—

PETER G BURNS

Director

Dated at

Perth this 30th day of September, 2010.
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Cell Aquaculture Ltd
ABN 86 091 687 740

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Revenue from continuing operations

Foreign currency gain

Loss on disposal of plant and equipment

Raw materials and consumables used

Legal expenses

Marketing expenses

Communication expenses

Consultancy expenses

Employee benefits expense

Insurance expenses

Occupancy Costs

Professional Costs

Travel Costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs

Tmpairment charge — capitalised research costs
Cancellation of share based payment

Other expenses

Share based payments

Share of net losses of associates using the equity method
Loss from continuing operations before Income Tax
Benefit

Income tax benefit

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on foreign currency translation
Total comprehensive income for the year

Loss is attributable fo:
Owners of Cell Aquaculture Ltd

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable to:

Owners of Cell Aquaculture Lid
Non-controlling interests

Basic (loss) per share
Diluted (loss) per share

Note

S(a)

5(h)
5(b)
13(a)
26(d)

26(d)
11

25

Consolidated
2010 2009
$ 3
538,717 385,003
(10,659 12,429
- (19,183)
(8,815) (319,501)
(14,292) (12,260)
(3,995) (13,757)
(3,268) (8,690)
(575,094) (399,665)
(547,059 (556,266)
(31,335) (21,178)
(19,785) (156,209)
- (119,394)
(69,843) (87,727)
(12,096) {525,653)
(271) (527)
- (192,343)
- 176,625
(330,992) (69,280)
(31,112) (82,863)
- (187,350)
(1,119,899) (2,197,789)
97,245 204,862
(1,022,654) (1,992,927)
{11,906) 5,435

(1,034,560)

(1,987,492)

(1,002,886) (2,004,592)
(19,768) 11,665
(1,022,654) {1,992.927)
(1,013,602) (1,999,157}
(20,958) 11,665
(1,034,560) {1,987,492)
Cents Per Share Cents Per Share
(0.56) (1.31)
(0.56) (1.31)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Cell Aquaculture Ltd
ABN 86 091 687 740

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2010
Consolidated
Note 2010 2009
$ 3

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 7 2,656,495 450,857

Trade and other receivables 8 275,666 481,317

Inventories 9 90,000 90,000
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,022,161 1,022,174
NON CURRENT ASSETS

Receivables 10 581,788 -

Property, plant and equipment 12 124,325 54,703
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 706,113 54,703
TOTAL ASSETS 3,728,274 1,076,877
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 14 297,488 265,440
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 297,488 265,440
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings 15 - 13,162
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES - 13,162
TOTAL LIABILITIES 297,488 278,602
NET ASSETS 3,430,786 798,275
EQUITY

Contributed equity 16 18,194,635 14,544 676

Accumulated losses 17(b) (15,525,029) (14,522,143)

Reserves 17(a}) 782,138 775,742

Parent entity interests 3,451,744 798,275

Non-controlling interests {20,958) -
TOTAL EQUITY 3,430,786 798,275

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Cell Aquaculture Ltd
ABN 86 091 687 740

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Consolidated

Balance at 1.7.2008
TLoss for the year

Exchange difference on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive
income for the period
Transactions with owners

in their capacity as owners:

Issue of shares

Share based payments

Balance at 30.06.2009

Balance at 1,7.2009

Loss for the year

Exchange difference on
transfation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive
income for the period
Transactions with owners

in their capacity as owners:

Issue of shares
Share based payments
Balance at 30.06.2010

Contributed Accumulated Share Based  Foreign Total Non- Total
equity losses Payment Currency confrolling
Reserve Translation Interest
Reserve

13,794,676  (12,517,551) 897,765 (33,296) 2,141,594 (11,665) 2,129,929
- {2,004,592) - - (2,004,592) 11,665 (1,992,927)

- - - 5435 5,435 - 5,435
- (2,004,592) - 5435  (1,999,157) 11,665 (1,987,492)

750,000 - - - 750,000 - 750,000

- - (94,162) - {94,162) - (94,162)
14,544,676 (14,522,143) 803,603 {27,861) 798,275 - 798,275
14,544,676  (14,522,143) 803,603 (27,861) 798,275 - 798,275
- (1,002,386) - - (1,002,886) (19,768) (1,022,654)
- - - (10,716) {10,716) {1,190) (11,906)
- (1,002,886) - (10,716) (1,013,602)  (20,958) (1,034,560)
3,649,959 - - - 3,649,959 - 3,649,959

- - 17,112 - 17,112 - 17,112

18,194,635 (15,525,029) 820,715 (38,577) 3,451,744 (20,958) 3,430,786

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Cell Aquaculture Ltd
ABN 86 091 687 740

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Consolidated
Note 2010 2009
$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 150,000 197,414
Grant received - 39,647
Interest received 47,767 26,036
Borrowing costs - (527)
Payments fo suppliers and employees (1,659,504) (1,915,620)
Income tax refund - 204,862
Net cash outflow from operating activities 23 (1,461,737) (1,448,188)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment {(65,084) -
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - 10,000
Net cash (outflow) inflow from investing activities (65,084) 10,000
CASH FLOWS ¥ROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Share Issues 3,732,459 648,500
Repayment — Lease Liabilities - (15,909)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 3,732,459 632,591
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,205,638 (805,597)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial
year 450,857 1,257,864
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents - (1,410)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year T(a) 2,656,495 450,857

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements,
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Cell Aquaculture Ltd
ABN 86 091 687 740

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of Preparation

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board and Urgent Issues Group Interpretations.

Compliance with AIFRS
The financial report of the Group also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Historical cost convention

The financial report has also been prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historical costs and does not take into
account changing money values or, except where stated, current valuations of non-current assets. Cost is based on the fair
values of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 3.

Financial statement presentation

The Group has applied the revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements which became effective on 1 January
2009. The revised standard requires the separate presentation of a statement of comprehensive income and a statement of
changes in equity. All non-owner changes in equity must now be presented in the statement of comprehensive income.
Additionally, the Corporations Amendment (Corporate Reporting Reform) Bill 2010 which became effective on 28 June
2010 dictates that parent entity financial statements are no longer required. As a resulf, the Group had to change the
presentation of its financial statements. Cormparative information has been re-presented so that it is also in conformity with
the revised standard.

Separate financial statements for Cell Aquaculture Ltd, as an individual entity, are no longer presented as a consequence of a
change to the Corporations Act 2001, Financial information for the Company is set out in Note 27.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities conirolled by the Company. The consolidated financial statements are prepared by combining the
financial statements of all the entities that comprise the Consolidated Entity, being Cell Aquaculture Limited (“Company™ or
“Parent Entity”) and its subsidiary as defined in AASB 127: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. Consistent
accounting policies are employed in the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements include the information and results of the subsidiary from the date on which the
Company obtains control and until such time as the Company ceases to control such entity. Acquisitions of entities are

accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter-Company balances and transactions, income and expenses and
profit and losses resulting from intra-Group transactions are eliminated in full.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in the financial report of Cell Aquaculture Limited.

Non-controlling inierests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of
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Cell Aquaculture Ltd
ABN 86 091 687 740

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

comprehensive income and statement of financial position respectively. Total comprehensive income is attributable to the
owners of Cell Aquaculture Limiied and non-controlling interests even if this resulis in the non-controlling interests having a
debit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that does not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interest and any consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to the owners of Cell Aquaculture Limited.

Changes in accounting policy

The Group has changed its accounting policy for transactions with non-controlling interests and the accounting for loss of
control, joini control or significant influence from 1 July 2009 when a revised AASBI127 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statemenis became operative. The revisions to AASB 127 contained consequential amendments to AASB 128
Investments in Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures.

Previously transactions with non-controlling interests were ireated as transactions with parties external to the Group.
Disposals therefore resulted in gains or losses in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income and purchases resulted
in the recognition of goodwill. On disposal or partial disposal, a proportionate interest in reserves attributable to the
subsidiary was reclassified to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income or directly to retained earnings.

Previously when the Group ceased to have control, joint control or significant influence over an entity, the carrying amount
of the investment at the date control, joint control or significant influence ceased became its cost for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interests as associates, jointly controlled entity or financial assets.

The Group has applied the new policy prospectively to transactions occurring on or after 1 July 2009. As a consequence, no
adjustments were necessary to any of the amounts previously recognised in the financial statements.

Associates

The Company’s investments in associates arc accounted for using the equity method of accounting in the financial
statements. The associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint venture.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost plus post-
acquisition changes in the Company's share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the
carrying amount of the invesiment and is not amortised. After application of the equity method, the Company determines
whether it is necessary to recognise any additional impairment loss with respect to the Company’s net invesiment in the
associate, The statement of comprehensive income reflects the Company's share of the results of operations of the associate.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Where there has been a change recognised directly in the associate's equity, the Company recognises its share of any changes
and discloses this in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Although the balance date of the associates is 31 December results have been calculated to 30 June based upon the latest
available management information. The associate’s accounting policies conform to those used by the Company for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

the asset transferred.
{c) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent wit the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of Cell Aquaculture Ltd.

A business segment is a Group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks
and returns that are different to those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment and is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
segments operating in other economic environments.

Change in accounting policy

The Group has applied AASB 8 Operating Segments from 1 July 2009. AASB 8 requires a ‘management approach’ under
which segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes. Operating segments
are now reported in a manner that is consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i} Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is Cell Aquaculture Ltd’s functional and presentation
currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setilement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income, except when they are deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and
gualifying net investment hedges.

(iii) Group companies

The resulis and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation cuirency as
foltows:

e assets and liabilities for each Statement of Financial Position presented are translated at the closing rats at the date
of that Statement of Financial Position;

s income and expenses for each Statement of Comprehensive Income are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

s all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to sharehelders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, a proportionate share of
such exchange differences are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, as part of the gain or loss on sale where
applicable.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entities and translated at the closing rate.
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(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed fo the buyer and the
costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards of ownership are
considered passed to the buyer at thie time of delivery of the goods to the customer.

(ii) Interest income
Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.

) Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match the grant on a
systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

When the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
comprehensive income over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Where a grant is received in relation to the tax benefit of research and development costs, the grant shall be credited to
income tax expense in the statement of comprehensive income in the year of receipt.

® Income tax

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable fo
temporary differences and to unused tax losses,

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary difference arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction other than a business
combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position
date and are expecied to apply when the deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and if is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity,
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Cell Aquaculture Limited and its Australian controlled entity has implemented the tax consolidation legislation.
(h) Other taxes
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

« when the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

» receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables
in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flow on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are classified as operating
cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority.

(i) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease
ligbility so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term if there is
no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the total
lease expense.

() Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, including business combinations
involving entities or businesses under common control, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of
any contingent consideration arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incwred, Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at a fair vale or at a
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
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date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets required is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
subsidiary acquired and the measurement of all amounts has been reviewed, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted at their
present value as at the date of the exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate
in which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss,

Change in accounting policy
A revised AASB 3 Business Combinations became operative on 1 July 2009. While the revised standard continues to apply
the acquisition method to business combinations, there have been some significant changes,

All purchase consideration is now recorded at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent payments classified as debt are
subsequently remeasured through profit or loss. Under the Group’s previous policy, contingent payments were only
recognised when the payments were probable and could be measured reliably and were accounted for as an adjustment to the
cost of the acquisition.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Previously, they were recognised as part of the cost of acquisition and
therefore included in goodwill.

Non-controlling interests in an acquiree are now recoguised either at fair value or at the non-comtrolling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. This decision is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Under the previous policy, the non-controlling interest was always recognised at its share of the acquiree’s net identifiable
assets.

If the Group recognises previous acquired deferred tax assets after the initial acquisition accounting is completed there will
no longer be any adjustment to goodwill. As a consequence, the recognition of the deferred tax asset will increase the
Group’s net profit after tax.

The changes were implemented prospectively from 1 July 2009.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above, net of ouistanding bank overdrafis.

()} Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-90 day terms, are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an
allowance for any uncollectible amounts.

An allowance for doubtfil debts is made when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect the
debis. Bad debts are written off when identified.
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(m) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

.(n) Non-current assets (or disposal Groups) held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets {or disposal Groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets, investment property and non-current biological asgets that are carried at fair value and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

(0) Investments and other financial assets

Recognition
Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, when the related
coniractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured as set out below.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal payments and
amortisation.

Fair value
Valuation techniques are applied to determine the fair value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm's length
transactions, reference to similar instruments and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been
impaired. In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a prolonged decline in the value of the instrument is
considered to determine whether an impairment has arisen. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. .

p) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are brought to account at cost or at independent or Directors’ valuation, less where applicable
any accumulated depreciation or amortisation. The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed annually
by Directors to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from those assets, The recoverable amount is assessed
on the basis of expected net cash flows which will be received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal.

The gain or loss on disposal of all fixed assets, including revalued assets, is determined as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and the proceeds of disposal, and is included in the statement of
comprehensive income. Any realised revaluation increment relating to the disposed asset which is included in the
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained eamings,

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings and capitalised leased assets, but excluding freehold land, are
depreciated over their useful lives commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Properties held for investment
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purposes are not subject to a depreciation charge.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Assct Depreciation Rate
Buildings on Leaschold Land 25%
Plant and equipment 5-40%

{q) Intangibles

(i} Patents, technology and licences

Patents, technology and licences are valued in the accounts at cost of acquisition. They have a finite life and are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses, Patents, technology and licences are amortised over their
useful life, estimated at 5 years.

(ii} Research & development
Expenditure during the research phase of a project is recognised as an expense when incurred.

Development costs are capitalised only when technically feasibility studies identify that the project will deliver future
economic benefits and these benefits can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point in which the asset is ready for
use on a straight line basis over its useful life, estimated at 3 years.

Where a grant is received or receivable in relation to research costs which have been charged to the statement of
comprehensive income during this or a prior financial year, the grant shall be credited to the statement of comprehensive
income.

‘Where a grant is received in relation to the tax benefit of research and development costs, the grant is credited to income tax
expense/benefit in the statement of comprehensive income upon receipt.

(r) Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Groups of agsets and the asset's value in use cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value, In such cases the
asset is tested for impairment as part of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset or
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating unit is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses
relating fo continuing operations are recognised in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset
unless the asset is carried at revalued amount {in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease).

An assessment is also made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
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determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase. After such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systermatic basis over its remaining useful life.

(s) Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised costs and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to
the Company prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Company becomes obliged to make
future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services.

(%) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.
(u) Interesi-bearing loans and borrowings

Al loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilitics are derecognised.
) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to
any provision is presented in statement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the
risks specific to the liability.

When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a borrowing cost.
(w) Employee benefits

(i) Wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and aceurnulating sick leave expected to be
settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees' services up to the
reporting date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for non-
accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and are measured at the rates paid or payable.

(ii) Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the
projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on
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national government bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows.

(iii) Share-based payments
The Company provides benefits to employees (including Directors) in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (‘equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an internal valuation using a Binomial option pricing model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to
the award (‘vesting date’).

The cumnulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until vesting date reflects (i) the
extent to which the vesting period has expired; and (ii) the mumber of options that, in the opinion of the Directors of the
Company, will ultimately vest. This opinion is formed based on the best available information at balance date. No
adjustment is made for the likelihood of market performance conditions being met as the effect of these conditions is
included in the determination of fair value at grant date.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted the cancelled and new award are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award.

(x) Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(y) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members, adjusted to exclude any costs of servicing equity
(other than dividends) and preference share dividends, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted
for any bonus element.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members, adjusted for:

« costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends;

+ the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognised as
expenses; and

« other non-discretionary changes in revenues or cxpenses during the period that would result from the dilution of potential
ordinary shares; divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted
for any bonus element.

(z) New accounting standards and interpretations

The AASB has issued new, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not mandatory for 30 June 2010
reporting periods. The Group has decided against early adoption of these standards. A discussion of these future
requirements and their impact on the Group is set out below.
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Affected Standard Title of Affected Standard Nature of Change Application Impact on Inktlal Application
Date *
AASB 2009-5 Further Amendments to Australian Not urgent, but necessary changes to 1 Janvary
(issued May 2009) Accounting Standards arising from the AIFRS as a result of the [ASB’s 2008 2010
Annual Improvements Process annual improvement process.

- AASB107 Statement of Cash flows Clarifies that only expenditures that 1 January Initiz] adoption of this amendment will
result in a recognised asset in the 2010 have no impact as the entity only
staterment of financial position are recognises ¢ash flows from imvesting
eligible for classification as cash flows activities for expenditures that result in a
from investing activities. recognised asset in the statement of

financial position.

- AASBS Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Clarifies that disclosures required for 1 January There will be no impact as these

Discontinued Operations non-current assets classified as held for 2010 requivements are only required to be
sale are limited 1o those required by applied prospectively to disclosures for
AASB 5 unless disclosures are non-current assets classified as held for
specifically required for these assets by sale.
other AASB’s.
AASB 2009-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Clarifies the scope and accounting for 1 January No impact as there are no share-based
(issued July 2009 Standards-Group Cash-Settled Share based Group cash-settled share-based 2010 payment transactions where the enfity
Payment transactions payment transactions in the individual receives goods or services with no
financial statements of an entity cotrespording obligation to settle the
receiving goods/services when that share-based payment transaction.
entity has no obligation to settle the
share-based payment transaction.
Supersedes Interpretation 8
Scope of AASE 2 and Interpretation 11
AASH 2 Group and Treasury Share
Transactions.
AASB 2009-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Clarifies that such transaction where an | February [There will be no impact as the entity does
Standards-Classification of Rights Tssues Iasue of rights o options to & fixed 010 not issue rights or options to a fixed
[AASB 132] nummber of shares for a fixed amount in numbers of shares for a fixed amount in a
a different currency fo the functional different currency to the functional
currency must be treated as equity. Curency,

AASB9 Financial Instruments Amends the requirements for 1 Janvary  [Due to the recent release of these

(issued December classification and measurement of M3 amendments and that adoption is only

2009) financial assets. mandatory for the 30 June 2014 year end,

the entity has not yet made an assessment of]
the impact of these amendmenis.

AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures Clarifies the definition of a retated 1 January  [As this a disclosure standard only, there will

(issued December party. 2011 be no impact on amounts recognised in the

2009) financial statements.

AASB Interpretation | Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity instruments issued to a creditor 1 July 2010  [There will be no impact as the entity has not

19 (issued Equity Instruments to extinguish all or part of a financiak undertaken any debt for equity swaps.

Becember 2008) liability are ‘consideration paid” to be
recognised at the fair value of the
equily instruments issued, unless their
fair value cannot be measured reliably,
in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the debt extinguished.

Any difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the *consideration
paid’ is recognised in profit or loss.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures Deletes various disclosures relating to 1 January  [There will be no impact on initial adoption
credit risk, renegotiated loans and 2011 Lo amounts recognised in the financial

receivables and the fair value of
collateral hield.

statemnent as the amendments result in fewer

[isclosures.
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Note 2: Financial risk management

The Group’s activiiies expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of the financial
markets and secks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments; however, the Group uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is
exposed.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors with assistance from suitably qualified external advisors. The
Board provides written principles for overall risk management and further policies will evolve that are commensurate with

the evolution and growth of the Company.

The carrying values of the Group’s financial instruments are as follows:

Consolidated
2010 2009
3
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,656,495 450,857
Trade and other receivables 854,037 481,318
3,510,532 032,175
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 297,488 265,440
Borrowings - 13,162
297,488 278,602

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short-term deposits. The Group does not have any
borrowings.

It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be
undertaken. The main risks arising from the Group are cash flow (interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk). The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk

() Foreign exchange risk

Although the Group operates internationally all material financial assets are denominated in the respective entity’s functional
currency. Therefore its exposure to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures is limited to the transfer of
funding from the Australian head oftice to some of its overseas operations,

(ii) Cash flow and interest rate risk

The Group’s only interest rate risk arises from cash and cash equivalents held. Term depaosits and current accounts held with
variable interest rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group has no borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed by the Board and arises from cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposure including
outstanding receivables and committed transactions,

All cash balances held at banks are held at internationally recognised institutions.

For the Group, the majority of receivables are from associated companies.
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There are no formal credit approval processes and risk management in place. However, the Company reviews management
information for subsidiaries or associates to ensure early detection of risks.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date is the carrying amount of the financial assets as summarised at the
start of Note 2. The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to

external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about default rates.

Financial assets that are neither past due and not impaired are as follows:-

Consolidated
2010 2009
5 $

Financial assets - counterparties without external credit rating
Existing customers with defaults in past that have been fully
recovered - 29,389
New customers {less than 6 months) - -
Other receivables — no defaults in the past 256,617 103,255

256,617 132,644
Cash and cash equivalents
AA S&P rating 2,656,495 450,857

(©) Liguidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash balances and access to equity fiunding.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relate primarily to cash assets and floating interest rates.
The Group is not materially exposed to changes in market interest rates.

The Directors monitor the cash-burn rate of the Group on an on-poing basis against budget and the matority profiles of
financial assets and liabilities to manage its liguidity risk.

As at reporting date the Group had sufficient cash reserves to meet its requirements. The Group has no access to credit
standby facilities or arrangements for further funding or borrowings in place.

The financial liabilities the Group had at reporting date were trade payables incurred in the normal course of the business.
These were non interest bearing and were due within the normal 30-60 days terms of creditor payments.

The following table sefs out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the financial instruments including exposure to interest rate
risk:

Consolidated
Year ended 30 June 2010 <1 year 1-5 Over 5 Total contractual
Years Years cash flows
Financial Liabilities:
Trade payables and Advance
deposits 207,488 - - 297,488
Other loans - - - -
297,488 - - 297,488
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Year ended 30 June 2009 <1 year 1-5 Over 5 Total contractual
Years Years cash flows

Financial Liabilities:
Trade payables and Advance

deposits 265,440 - - 265,440
Other loans 13,162 - - 13,162
278,602 - - 278,602

{d) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure
purposes.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values
due to their short term nature.

The fair value of long-term borrowings is not materially different from their carrying value.

The consolidated entity’s principle financial instruments consist of cash and deposits with banks, accounts receivable, trade
payables and loans payable. The main purpose of these non-derivative financial instruments is to finance the entity’s
operations.

(e) Capital risk

The Group determines capital to be the equity as shown in the Statement of Financial Position plus net debt (being total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents),

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During 2010, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2009, was to keep borrowings to a minimum, The
Company’s equity management is determined by funds required to undertake its development activities and meet its
corporate and other costs.

Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made certain judgements or estimations which have an
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial staterments.

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and assumptions of future
events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period are:

Share-based payment transactions

The cost of share-based payments to employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined using the Binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. '
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Impairment of intangibles

The Group tests annually whether its intangible assets have suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 1(r). The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations are cashflow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a 3 year period. The
discount rate is 10%. Income forecasts are based on anticipated sales levels.

In making this judgement the Group evaluated the historical performance of the business, the performance of the business

relative to annual budgets, the anticipated future revenue streams to assess whether any impairment occurred. Turther details are
contained in Note 13(a).

Note 4: Segment information
(a) Description of Segments

The Board of Directors has determined the operating segments based on geographical location. The Group has two
reportable segments; namely, Ausiralia and Malaysia, which are the Group’s strategic business units.

The Australian segment incorporates the Company’s hatchery, fabrication and food-processing. The financial information
related to food-processing business is immaterial and thus, it is not reported as a separate segment for the financial year
ended 30 June 2010. The Malaysian segment incorporates corporate office, Terengganu based facility and any future
Malaysian based projects.

(b) Segment Information provided to the strategic steering committee

In AUD Australia Malaysia Taotal
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Total segment revenue 338,567 252,878 372,964 259,842 711,531 512,720
Inter-segment revenue (220,581) (153,753) - - {220,581) (153,753)
External Revenues 117,986 99,125 372,964 259,842 490,950 358,967
Adjusted EBITDA (636,514) (1,091,827) (455,116)  (1,113,000)  (1,091,630)  (2,204,827)
Depreciation and

amortisation (9,968) (525,653) - - {9,968) (525,653)
Income tax benefit 07,245 204,862 - - 97,245 204,862

Share of net losses
from associates - -

(187,350) (187,350)

Total segment assets 1,180,461 511,443 989,227 330,514 2,169,688 841,957

Total assets includes:

Additions to non-

current assets (other

than financial assets

and deferred tax) - - 578,370 - 578,370 -

Total segment

liabilities 58,916 136,247 1,376,821 447,779 1,435,737 584,026
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)
(D

(i)

(iif)

Other segment information

Segment revenue

Sales between segments are carried out at arm’s length and are eliminated on consolidation. The revenue from extemnal
parties reported to the strategic steering committes is measured in a manner consistent with that in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Segment revenue reconciles to fotal revenue from continuing operations as follows:

Consolidated
2010 2009
Total segment revenue 711,531 512,720
Intersegment eliminations (220,581) {153,753)
Interest revenue 47,767 26,036
Fotal revenue from continuing operations (note 5(a)) 538,717 385,003
Adjusted EBITDA

The strategic steering committee assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a measure of adjusted
EBITDA. This measurement basis excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure from the operating segments such as
restructuring costs, legal expenses and goodwill impairments when the impairment is the result of an isolated, non-
recurring event. Furthermore, the measure excludes the effects of equity-settled share-based payments and unrealised
gains/ (losses) on financial instruments. Tnterest income and expenditure are not allocated to segments, as this type of
activity is driven by the central treasury function, which manages the cash position of the Group.

A reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to operating loss before income tax is provided as follows:

Consolidated

2010 2009
Adjusted EBITDA (1,091,630) (2,204,827}
Intersegment eliminations 36,852 321,814
Inierest revenue 47,767 26,036
Finance costs 71) (327)
Depreciation (9,968) (19,664)
Amortisation - (505,989)
Share-based payments (31,112} (82,863)
Impairment of assets - (192,343)
Other (71,538) 460,574
Loss from continuing operations before tax (1,119,900) (2,197,789)
Segment assets

The amounts provided to the strategic steering commitiee with respect to total assels are measured in a manner consistent
with that of the financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical
location of the asset.

Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as follows:

Consolidated
2010 2009

Segment assets 2,169,688 841,957
Intersegment eliminations (997,967) (319,191)
Unallocated:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,548,959 450,857

Corporate headquariers assets 7,594 9,720

Other assets - 93,534
Total assets as per the Statement of Financial Position 3,728,274 1,076,877
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{iv) Segment liabilities
The amounis provided to the strategic steering commitiee with respect to total liabilities are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the financial statements. These liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the segment.

Reportable segments” liabilities are reconciled to total liabilities as follows:

Consolidated
2010 2009
Segment liabilities 1,435,737 584,026
Intersegment eliminations (1,235,494) (305,424)
Unallocated:
Current tax asset 97,245 -
Total liabilities as per the Statement of Financial Position 297,488 278,602
Note 5: Revenue and Expenses
Consolidated
2010 2000
b b
{a) Revenue from continuing operations
- Sale of produce and goods 490,950 319,320
- Interest received 47,767 26,036
- Other — Export Market Development Grant - 39,647
Total revenue 538,717 385,003
(b) Expenses
Cost of Sales 8,815 319,501
Depreciation of non-current assets
Plant and equipment 12,096 19,664
Total depreciation 12,096 19,664
Amortisation of non-current assets
Development costs - 492,239
Intellectual property / licence - 13,750
- 505,989
Finance costs
Interest paid 271 527
2010 2009
5 ]
Rental expense on operating lease — minimum lease payments - 38,672
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Note 6: Income Tax
() Income tax benefit

Current tax benefit
Previous year tax benefit not previously brought to
account ( Refer Note 6(¢) )

Consolidated
2010 2009
97,245 204,862
97,245 204,862

(b) The prima facie income tax expense on the pre-tax accounting loss reconciles to the income tax benefit in the financial

statements as follows:

Loss from continuing operations before Income Tax
Income tax benefit at 30%

Permanent Differences:
Non-deductible expenses — Other
Non-deductible expenses — Legal

Movements in unrecognised femporary differences

Tax effect of current year tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has
been recognised

R & D Cash Rebate Claimed (see note 6(e))

Income tax benefit

(c) The franking account balance at year end was $nil (2009: $nil).

(d) Unrecognised temporary differences

Deferred Tax Assets (at 30%)
On income tax account

Carry forward tax losses
Capital losses

Other

Deferred Tax Liabilities (at 30%)

Capitalised intangible assets and development costs which have been

claimed for tax purposes

Net deferred tax assets

Consolidated
2010 2009
S $
(1,119,899) (2,197,789)
(335,970) (659,336)
200 -
- 5,656
(335,770) (653,680)
75,588 182,469
260,182 471,211
{97,245) (204,862)
(97,245) {204,862)
Consolidated
2010 2009
5 $

1,717,750 1,706,036

1,363,992 1,363,092

120,948 120,948

3,202,690 3,190,976

3,202,690 3,190,976

Net deferred tax assets have not been brought to account as it is not probable within the immediate future that tax profits will be

available against which deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.

Page 40



Cell Aquaculture Ltd
ABN 86 091 687 740

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

(¢} During the year ended 30 June 2010 the Company applied for a rebate from the Australian Taxation Office of $97,245 (2009
$204,862) representing the fax value of research and development costs for the year ended 30 June 2009. This rebate was
received after 1 Tuly 2010, This amount is shown as an income tax benefit in the statement of comprehensive income for the
year ended 30 June 2010. The Company intends claiming the same rebate in respect of expenditure for the year ended 30 June
2010. The rebate applied for is estimated at $64,172. If this is successful, the refund will be shown as an income tax benefit for
the year ended 30 June 2011.

Note 7: Current assets - Cash and cash equivalents

{a) Reconciliation of Cash
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks and investiments in money market
instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash
flows is reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial position, as follows:

Consolidated
2010 2009
$ 3
Cmrrent Assets
Cash at bank and in hand 2,656,495 450,857
Net Cash 2,656,495 450,857
(b) Interest Rate Risk Exposure
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is discussed in note 2.
Note 8: Current assets: Trade and other receivables
Consolidated
2010 2009
h 3
Current
Trade receivables 157,958 378,062
Other receivables 117,708 103,255
275,666 481,317

{(a) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms. An allowance for doubtfil debts is made
when there is objective evidence that a trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the allowance/impairment loss has been
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the trade receivables and the estimated future cash flows expected to
be received from the relevant debtors.

(b) Impaired trade and other receivables

At 30 June 2010, there were no current trade receivables of the parent entity that were impaired (2009: $128,000).

(¢}  Receivables Past due but not impaired

(M) Group
As at balance date, there were receivables totalling $157,958 (2009: $348,693) that were past due but not impaired.
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The ageing of these receivables are:- Consolidated
2010 2009
5 5

1 to 3 months - -
3 to 6 months - -
6 to 12 months 138,909 348,653
Over 12 months 19,049 -

157,958 348,693

{d) Foreign exchange risk
Information about the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk in relation to trade and other receivables
is provided in Note 2.

(e)  TFair value and credit risk

Due to the short-term nature of these receivables, their carrying amount is assumed to approximate their fair value. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of each class of receivables mentioned above.

Note 9: Current Assets - Inventories

Consolidated
2010 2009
$ 5
Raw materials — at cost 90,000 90,000
90,000 90,000
Note 10: Non-current assets — Receivables
Consolidated
2010 2609
$ b
Rental bond — Cell Aqua Foods Pty Ltd 3,418 -
Trade receivables - TRG Cell* 578,370 -
581,788 -

*Trade receivables from TRG Cell are past due but not impaired. Directors believe that these receivables are recoverable. The
recovery process may take more than 12 months from the balancing date and thus, these receivables are treated as non-current
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position, The amounts owing have been cutstanding for in excess of 6 months,
The Company continues to negotiate recovery through a combination of options which the directors believe they are confident
in resolving which would result in the repayment of the amounts outstanding, As at the date of our report these options are yet
to be finalised.

Note 11: Non-current assets — Investments accounted for using the equity method

Consolidated
2010 2009
5 3

Interests in associated entities - -
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(a) Interests are held in the following associated entities

Name Prineipal Country of Shares Ownership Interest ~ Carrying amount of
Activities Incorporation Investment
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ $
TRG Cell Sdn Bhd Aquaculture  Malaysia Ordinary 30%* 30%* - -

* Shares in TRG Cell Sdn Bhd are owned by Cell Aqua Malaysia Sdn Bhd, a subsidiary of Cell Aquaculture Limited,

TRG Cell Total
Sdn Bhd
(b) Movements during the year ended 30 June 2009 $
Carrying amount at 1 July 2008 163,464 163,464
Foreign currency adjustment 23,886 23,886
Share of loss after income tax (187,350) {187,350
Carrying amount at 30 June 2009 - -
(c) Movements during the year ended 30 June 2010
Carrying amount at 1 July 2009 - -
Carrying amount at 30 June 2010 - -
(d) Share of Associates’ contingent liabilities and expenditure
commitments, other than for the supply of inventories
As at the date of this report, there are no contingent liabilities
or material expenditure commitments of associated entities
(e) Summarised presentation of aggregate Ownership Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit / (Loss)
Assets Liabilities and performance of interest
Associaies % $ 3 3 b
2010
TRG Cell Sdn Bhd 30 - - - -
2009
TRG Cell Sdn Bhd 30 522275 551,990 156 (263,100)
522,275 551,990 156 (263,100)
® Share of unrecognised losses
The share of unrecognised losses of the associate as at balance date is as follows:-
Consolidated
2010 2009
5 $
Groups share of losses to balance date 75,750 263,100
Less: amounts recognised - (187,350)
Balance of unrecognised loss 75,750 75,750
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Cell Aquaculture Ltd
ABN 86 091 687 740

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

(a) Impairment charge on capitalised development costs — Year Ended 30 June 2009

Because projected sales forecasts mainly arising from the Group’s Malaysian investments had not been met, the Directors at
30 June 2009 reviewed the carrying value of its development costs having regard to conservative sales forecasts,

Although the Directors were confident of successfully developing new projects in future periods, the carrying value could
not be supported by existing sales orders.

Accordingly an impairment charge of $192,343 arose as a result of this review.

Note 14: Current Habilities - Trade and other payables

Consolidated
2010 2009
b} $
Trade payables (i) 149,650 191,696
Advance deposits 50,000 50,000
Other payables 97,838 23,744
297,488 265,440

(i) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-90 day ferms. Their carrying value approximates
their fair value.

Note 15: Non-carrent liabilities — Borrowings

Consolidated
2010 2009
$ b
Loan from minority sharcholder - 13,162
- 13,162
Note 16: Contributed Equity
Consolidated
2010 2009
$ b
(a) Ordinary shares® 18,194,635 14,544,676
Total consolidated contributed equity 18,194,635 14,544,676

* Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends.
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(b) Movements in ordinary share capital

Issue Price No. $
Balance as at [ July 2008 150,461,440 13,794,689
Shares issued in June 2009 $0.06 12,500,000 750,000
Closing balance 162,961,440 14,544,689
Balance as at 1 July 2009 162,961,440 14,544,689
Shares issued in November 2009 §0.07 5,000,000 350,000
Shares issued in February 2010 $0.07 5,000,000 350,000
Shares issued in Feburary 2010 $0.115 3,600,000 414,000
Shares issued in February 2010 $0.09 1,511,111 136,000
Shares issued in February 2010 $0.096 25,000,000 2,400,000
Shares issued in February 2010 $0.07 200,000 14,000
Transaction costs {14,054)
Closing balance 203,272,551 18,194,635

(c) Share Options

Information relating to options, including details of options issued, exercised and lapsed during the financial year and
options outstanding at the end of the financial year are set out in note 26.

Note 17: Reserves and accumulated losses

Consolidated
2010 2009
3 $

(a) Reserves
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (Note 17{(a) (i) (38,577 (27,861)
Share Based Payment Reserve (Note 17(a) (ii)) 820,715 803,603

782,138 775,742
(i) Movements
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Opening balance (27.861) (33,296)
Currency translation differences arising during the year {10,716) 5,435

(38.577) (27,861)

Consolidated
2010 2009
$ $

(i) Movement — Share Based Payment Reserve
Opening balance 803,603 897,765
Grant of employee options 17,112 82,463
Cancellation of employee options - {176,625)
Closing balance 820,713 803,603

(iii) Nature and purpose of reserves
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of the investments in foreign
controlled companies are taken to the foreign currency translation reserve. The
reserve is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the net

investment is disposed of,

Share Based Payment Reserve

The Share Based Payment Reserve is used to recognise the fair value of options

issued but not exercised (Note 26{c))
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(b) Accumulated Losses

Balance as at 1 July (14,522,143) (12,517,551)
Net loss for the year {1,002,886) (2,004,592)
Balance as at 30 June {15,525,029) (14,522,143)
Note 18: Key Management Personnel disclosures
(a) Compensation of Key Management Personnel
Consolidated
2010 2009
§ 8
Short-term employee benefits 316,614 413,515
Termination benefils - -
Share based payments 31,112 59,143
Post employment benefits 18,633 16,131
366,359 488,789
{b) Options Holdings of Key Management Personnel
30 June 2010 Balance Granted as Options Options  Balance Total Vested Total Exerci- Total
1.7.0% Remun- Excercised Expired 30.6.10 30.6.10 sable Unexercisable
Director eration 30.6.10 30.6.10
P J Leach - - - - - - - -
P G Burns 1,560,000 - - - 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 -
S E Abishegam 2,500,000 - “ - 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 -
P Bodycoat - - - - - - - -
C Bolger - - - - - - - -
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 -
30 June 2009 Balance Granted as Options Options Balance Tatal Vested Total Total
1.7.08 Remun- Excercised Expired 30.6.09 30.6.09 Exerci- Unexercisable
Director eration sable 30.6.09
30.6.09
P J Leach - - - - - - - -
P G Burns 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 300,000
S E Abishegam 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 500,000
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 3,200,000 3,200,000 800,000

(c) Options provided as remuneration and shares issued on exercise of such options

Details of options provided as remuneration and shares issued on the exercise of such options, together with terms and

conditions of the options, can be found in the audited Remuneration Report in the Directors Report.
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(d) Shareheoldings of Key Management Personnel

30 June 2010 Balance Received as Allotted Net Balance
1July 2009 Remuneration Purchased/ 30 June 2010
Director (Sold)
P J Leach 16,007,501 - - 16,007,501
P G Bums 1,250,395 - - 1,250,395
S E Abishegam 1,293,816 - - 1,293,816
Peter Bodycoat - - 1,640,540 1,640,540
C Bolger - - - -
18,551,712 - 1,640,540 20,192,252
30 June 2009 Balance Received as Allotted Net Balance
1 July 2008 Remuneration Purchased/ 30 June 2009
Director (Sold)
P J Leach 16,507,501 - (500,000) 16,007,501
P G Bums 1,250,395 - - 1,250,395
S E Abishegam 1,293,816 - - 1,293,816
19,051,712 - {500,000) 18,551,712

(e) Other transactions with Key Management Personnel
Other Transactions with Key Management Personnel and their related entities:

Transactions between Key Management Personnel and their related entities are on commercial terms no more favourable
than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

Consolidated
2010 2009

$ 5
(i) Management fees and reimbursements paid to Azimuth Shipping
Corporation, a related Company of S E Abishegam. 255,886 236,480
(ii) Consulting fees paid to Jarq Holdings Pty Ltd, a related Company of P
Leach 113,415 -
(iii) Consulting fees and rent paid to Acute Management Services, a related
entity of P Bodycoat 60,000 -
(f) Amounts outstanding at balance date -
Aggregate amounts payable to Key Management Personnel and their Key
Management Personnel -related entities at balance date:
Current liabilities
Unsecured loans 38,592 -
Non Current liabilities
TUnsecured loans - 13,162
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Note 19: Remuneration of auditors

The auditor of Cell Aquaculture Limited is BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd.

Consolidated
2010 2009
Audit Services b3 3
Amounts paid or payable to the anditor for:
- auditing and reviewing the financial statements 42,533 54,362
42,533 54,362
Other Assurance Services - -
Total remuneration for assurance services 42,533 54,362

Note 20: Contfingencies
Contingent Liabilities

The Directors are not aware of any contingent liabilities as at the date of this report.

Note 21: Related party transactions

(a) Parent entity

The parent entity within the Group is Cell Aquaculture Ltd. The ultimate parent entity and ultimate controlling entity is Cell
Aquaculture Lid which at 30 June 2010 owns 90% (2009: 90%) of issued ordinary shares of Cell Aqua Malaysia Sdn Bhd and
100% of issued ordinary shares of Cell Aqua Foods Pty Ltd.

(b} Transactions with related parties

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that were entered into with related parties. All transactions are on
commercial terms and no more favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

Consolidated
2010 2009
3 b3
Sale of equipment and services to associated entity 220,581 258,991

(¢) Outstanding balances arising from sales of goods and services
Current receivables (sales of goods and services) - subsidiaries - -

(e) Terms and conditions

All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates, except that there are no fixed
terms for the repayment of loans between the parties, and no interest is payable on the loans. Outstanding balances are
unsecured and are repayable in cash.
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Note 22: Events occurring after the reporting period

Cell Aqua Foods Pty Ltd subsequently acquired plant and equipment and the registered business name (Providores Kitchen)
necessary to carry on food-processing activities. The acquisition was completed on 1 July 2010. The total fair value of plant
and equipment acquired was $36,400 which was equivalent to the total net assets acquired. In addition, it is estimated that
approximately $100,000 will be spent on acquiring additional plant and equipment and on capital improvements of the lease
facility. This acquisition had no impact on profit or loss of the consolidated entity for the year ended 30 June 2010.

Note 23: Reconciliation of loss after income tax to net cash flow from operating activities

Consolidated
2010 2009
$ 5
Operating loss after income tax (1,022,654) (1,992,927)
Loss on sale of non-current assets - 19,180
Depreciation of non-current assets 12,096 19,664
Amortisation/ Impairment of Intangibles - 698,332
Share of net losses of associates _ - 187,350
Share based payments 31,112 (94,162)
Other {125,040) (12,429)
Changes in net assets and liabilities: :
(Increase)/decrease in assets
- Current receivables 205,651 (132,854)
- Non-current receivables (581,788) -
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
- Current trade creditors and payables 32,048 (140,342)
- Borrowings (13,162} -
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitics (1,461,737) (1,448,188)

Note 24: Non-cash investing and financing activities

There is no non-cash investing and financing activities during the financial year ended 30 June 2010.

Note 25: Loss per Share

Basic loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing net foss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

The Company’s polential ordinary shares, being its options granted, are not considered dilutive as the conversion of these
options would result in a decrease in net loss per share.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic loss per share computations:
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Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders

Weighted average number of ordinary shares us
calculating basic earnings per share

Basic and diluted loss per share

Note 26: Share-based payments

(a)  Options

ed as the denominator in

Consolidated
2010 2009
5 $

1,002,886 2,004,592
Number Number
179,146,280 152,345,002
Cents/share Cents/share

(0.56) (1.31)

Options over shares in the Company are granted under the Cell Aquaculture Employee Share Qption Plan {(‘ESOP”) which
was approved by shareholders on 31 October 2007. The details of the plan are discussed in Remuneration Report section.

(b)

Consolidated Entity - 2010

Directors Oplions

Grant date Expiry date Exercise Opening Granted Exercised Cancelled Closing Vested and
rate balance during  during the during the year balance exercisable
the year year at end of
the year
29/11/07 29/11/10 20 cents 5,500,000 - - - 5,500,000 5,500,000
Consolidated Entity — 2009
Grant date Expiry date Exercise Opening  Granted Exercised Cancelled Closing Vested and
rate balance during  during the during the year balance exercisable
the year year at end of
the year
29/11/07 29/11/10 20 cents 10,000,000 - - {4,500,000) 5,500,000 5,000,000

The weighted average exercise price is 20 cents. The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at

the end of the period was 0.42 years (2009 — 1

.42 years).

‘The fair value of all options granted was 6.28 cents per share (totalling $628,000), using a Binomial option valuation
methodology. This volatility rate was 50% and the risk free interest rate was 6.69%. All options have an expiry date of 29
November 2010 and an exercise price of 20 cents.

(¢)  Employee Options
Consolidated Entity — 2010
Current  Expiry date  Exercise Opening Granted Exercised  Cancelled Closing Vested and
date rate balance during the  during the during the balance exercisable
year year year at end of
the year
0170408  01/04/11 20 cents 3,050,000 - - - 3,050,000 3,050,000
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Consolidated Entity — 2009

Director Current Expiry date Exercise Opening Granted Exercised  Cancelled Closing Vested and
date rate balance during the during the during the balanee exercisable

year year year at end of

' the year

01/04/08  01/04/11 20 cents 3,050,000 - - - 3,050,000 2,440,000

Options were granted to PG Burns, the Business Development Manager, prior to his appointment as a Director on 2 April
2008.

The balance of the options was vested on 1 October 2009.

The weighted average exercise price is 20 cents. The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at
the end of the period was 0.75 years (2009 — 1.75 years).

The fair value of all options granted was 5.28 cents per share (totalling $161,041), using a Binomial option valuation
methodology. This volatility rate was 50% and the risk free interest rate was 6.035%. All options have an expiry date of 1
April 2011 and an exercise price of 20 cents.

(d) Expenses/{benefit) arising from share-based paynient transactions

Total expenses/(benefit) arising from share-based payment transactions recognised during the period were as follows:

Consolidated
2010 2009
3 $
Shares issued — Company Secretary 14,000 -
Cancellation of Directors options - (176,625)
Options issued — Directors 17,112 28,783
Options issued - Employees - 53,680
Net expense/(benefit) included in statement of comprehensive income 31,112 (94,162)
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Note 27: Parent entity information

The following detailed information is related to the parent entity, Cell Aquaculture Ltd, at 30 June 2010. The information
presented here has been prepared using consistent accounting policies as discussed in Note 1.

b
Current assets 3,181,370
Non-current assets 555,643
Total assets 3,737,013
Current liabilities 156,160
Non-current liabilities -
Total liabilities 156,160
Contributed equity 18,194,635
Accumulated losses (15,434 ,497)
Reserves 820,715
Total equity 3,580,853
Loss for the year (850,680)
Other comprehensive income for the year -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (850,680)
Note 28: Dividends

No dividends have been declared or paid during the year.
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